
Four Deesıs Themes in the Church of

Ihe renewed interest ıIn Deesıis themes and theır 6ESSCNCEC hat “Irm
unıvocal deMNinıtion of ÖENO1LC 15 impossıble’”” *. { hıs opınıon 1S supported Dy
four lıttle known varıants of ctitoric Deesis theme preserved In the Georglan
church of OSkı In the historıic provınce of 130 ocated In northeastern Turkey.
The church Was ul from 963 9073 DYy the ocal rulers, Bagrat, uke of
ukes. and hıs brother, avı Kuropalates, both ell known from georglan,
Byzantıne and Armenıian ONTGceCsS

Our Deesis themes dIC sıgnıfıcant for theır early date, theır structural and
iconographiıc varlıatıons, the firm dates of theır execution and for the Content
of theır accompanyıng Inscr1ptions, provıdıng us wıth addıtional informatıon
concerning the meanıng mplıed In DeeSsis. TE of these VOoLO COMPpOSI-
t10Ns In IImestone relief 4A1 Contemporary ıth the construction of the church
INn 963-973:; the fourth 1s al] paıntıng rmly ascrıbed tO 036

The rst Deesıis fg 1S ocated the eastern portion of the avıshly
decorated exterl10r south all of the church consısts of “normal‘, fully
Nedged Deesis: the Savıour stands suppedaneum In rontal posıtıon wıth
Hıs rg hand raısed In the gesture of benediction. The Vırgın, NO fallen
from her orıgınal place Christ’s Ng and the Prodromos Hıs leit. ATC
shown ıth armMs outstretched In supplıcatıon LO the Savlour. Accompanyıng
them AL Bagrat, uke of ukes, and avı Kuropalates, the crowned donors
In theır ofhicıal] attıre. each holdıng MO of the ()skı church The elıefs of
both the rulers and the Vırgıin ATC rather ell preserved, whereas those of
Chriıst and the Prodromos ATIC badly weathered. The entire background 6f thıs
iramed composıtıon Was orıginally paınted ıth purple pıgment The ngures
must lıkewıise ave been paınted In clear contrastıng colors. AS Ooun traCces
of 1g blue and L[OSC the mophorion of Mary and her footstoo] revealed
the traces of whıte and gold pıgment old Wds also pplıed LO the COal of
avı Magıstros 1C 1S embellıshed ıth cırcular inhabıted Dy
eagles holdıng suspended heart-shaped ..  roya jewels’”’ In theır beaks All of the

hıs Wdas submıtted the 7th Internatıional Byzantıne Congress held Dumbarton
UOaks, Washıngton In 1986, but Was NnOT delıvered due the author’s ıllness.

alter, ' |WO Ofes Deesis’” RER Z (1968) 324; Cutler ‘“"Iypical Irımorphon”
Devıant Deesis? Problem of ıddle Byzantıne Art and Literature””, Ninth Annual of
Byzantine Studies Conference, Abstract of Papers, November 4- 1983,
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170 Dijobadze

Nngures ATIC perceıved In hıgh relıef 1fe-sıze scale and AL enhanced by the
UuUsSCcC of colors they MUuUST generated almost magıcal impression uUuDON the
specta(tor.

T hıs dıffers from a]] Deesis representations known us by 1ts natural
dımensıiıons (h 1.46 Hi 0.70 m.) ven the royal donors, who ATC nOTL shown
A humble supplıcants seekıng salvatıon, but stand uprıight, ATC AS arge AS the
Deesis Ngures themselves. In the e inscription above each ruler— Davıd
the Ng of the Vırgıin and Bagrat the eft of John the Baptıst—requests
dIC made theır respectıve intercessors, wıthout addressing them Dy theır
1amne askıng for exaltatıon and salvatıon In both ö1l theır LIves”: thereby
revealıng the eschatologıcal meanıng O7 theır supplıcation>. More dırect 15 the
supplicatory inscr1ption OVeT the Deesis DTODCT In S1IX lınes In 16 the rulers
invoke the Vırgın and the Prodromos provıde exaltatıon and MHCGEsS

‘Holy other of (J0d and holy John the] Baptıst eXa OUTr 1ngs
yOUL humble slaves, buılders of hıs holy church
and Iso ead SUCCESS
OUT Kıngs Bagrat andPa CN} O: - S R Davıd +

1S sıgnıfıcant hat the term Deesis 0€eSs nOTL AaDPCATr 1S thıs supplıcatory
inscrıption.

The second example of Deesis, ocated In nıche of the south-western pier (g
18 incomplete. contaıns the half figures of the SdINe donors and theır

correspondıng intercessors (Davıd ıth the Vırgın and the Prodromos wıth
Bagrat), who due LO the prohıbıtive ATIC NnNOTL physıcally shown, but AdIC

represented Dy the inscriptions of theır ın the nomınatıve Cadsc Each
ruler 1S accompanıed Dy supplicatory ([exXtii In CSSCIICC 1S iıdentical the
Content of the inscr1iptions above avl and Bagrat ın OUT PrevIOUS example.
They A

Davıd) Bagrat  S
Holy The slave of (G0d Holy OQur Kıng Bagrat, uke
other Davıd Magıstros (John) the of €S: burlder of
of Go0od buıllder of thıs holy Baptıst hıs holy church. Christ

church Be exalted exalt |Bagrat| Amen >.
DYy G0d Amen.

On hıs inscr1ption SCC DJjobadze, “CThe Donor Reliefs and the ate of the Church al (IsSkı
Byz (1976) 43

VON BOogyay, ‘“ Deesıs und Eschatologie”, Byzantinische Forschungen, Internationale eılt-
schrift für Byzantinistik 11 (1967) O31 A
hıs NO consıderabily weathered inscer1ption Was read In 917 IN SIEU by T’akaısvılı. JO [LS
ark eotogiuri ekspedicia samhret‘ sak ’art velosi ( Archeological Expedition IN Southern Georgia INn

Thbiılısı 1960, 52 Englısh translatıon of thıs Inscr1ption by DJjobadze, O, cCıt 43
DJjobadze, O, C1It AT
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Here the iragmentary image of Chriıst, paınted In the mıddle of the nıche has
een covered wıth whıte-wash.

The AT example ö1 :20Tecat Deesıis ocated In the west end of the southern
pOrC 1S carved octagonal extendıing CT ıts capıtal (fig 3)° The
three maın partıcıpants AT© cshown standıng In strict rontal posıtıon. The
Savı1our and the Vırgin hold In theır eft An unrolle: crolls 1Cc reach the
tıps of theır feet (g The Prodromos, however, who u towards
Chriıst wıth emphasızed ands. 1S left wıthout scroll The unusual COU
be explaıned Dy suggesting that the Prodromos’ intercessory plea and hıs

PTITayCIS have already eached the Savlour, who approvıngly Hıs
MNg hand In the gestiure of essINg, possıbılıty reinforced DYy the SMa
neelıng gure under the Prodromos’ feet of the construction SUupervVISOr
Gr120J1, epıicte ıth raısed an Partıcıpating In thıs Deesis ATC the
eavenly forces: archangels, seraphıms, tetramorphs, cherubims and saılnts.
The iıllumınator of Georgla, Nıno, and St 5Symeon ylıtes the Y ounger,
the MO of Georgjan monachısm., H1: shown d OFranlis In 1l10N AIiICcC arge
S1ZE bust representations of the famous healers (anarg yrol), Cosmas and
Damıan, holdıng tradıtional probes In theır ng an and DOLS of medicıne
In theır eft Most of these igures, ocated the apıtal above the Deesis
PTODCT, AIC nvoked In the 1turgy durıng the intercession that forms the
Proskomidi' and consequently, AdAIC connected wıth the Deesıs. In thıs connection
it should be mentioned that the Great Intercessory Prayer 1S inscerıbed
the external all of OUT church’s south AT  3 (“ Jesus Chrıst, through the
intercession of the Holy other of (30d and the Holy John the Baptıst and the
Holy Wood of Life and al the Saınts, exalt OUT Ings O and that another
donor’s inscrıption aAaDPCATs In the of the south door®

Orıginally all Component ingures of the Deesis WeTC iıdentified Dy Georglan
mrg vlovani inscr1ıptions, SOTIINC of 1C dIC eg1ble CVCNMN 11O However, the
Intercessory DTayer of Grigol, 1C Was inser1bed uDON the OÖOPCH scroll held
Dy Chriıst and COU ave provıde us ıth addıtional informatıon Concerning
the CoONntent of the supplıcatory LEXT, has completely disappear;d.

The 200d photographs (by Wınfield) and the ACCUTraTte drawıng of all eıght ascets of thıs
column (by Wınfield)y are publıshed by Wınfield In "Some Early Medieval Fıgure Sculpture
Irom North-East 1üUrkey®. Journal of the Warburg Institute (1968) 4A85

Brıightman, Liturgies Ekastern and Western, Aastern Liturgies. Oxford 1896, I: 545 FOor
the sıgnıfıcance of the lıturgıcal exi In the formatıon of the ‘“ Dees1is” SCC Myslıvet's
‘“Proiskhozdenie eisusa ” In Vizantıa V slavijane drevnaija Rus Zapadnaja Europda, In
Honor of Lazarev (Moscow 611

DJjobadze, Georglan Churches of Tao-Klarjet’1, Construction Methods and Materı1als:
(IX XI entury)” OrChr (1978) 261
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In thıs regard dIC In better posıtıon interpret the fourth Deesis (g
representation paınted in conche of the church’’s south ın 036
Thıs ragment of the wallpaıintıng, publıshed eTe for the first tiıme, surveyed
and recorded the 4th of September 9083 after Camıl ul into the south

Was removed, revealıng the NarTOW strıp of paıntıng. Consısting of
theır maın fgures Chrıst AManked Dy the Vırgin and the Prodromos) ıt 1S
ocated Just above the OOT eadıng the south and ıts {[WO Mankıng
WIndows.

Orıginally thıs Deesıis should ave nCcIude INOTC ngures, SOTIIC of whıch —
such ASs the ange above and Sta Thecla, Sta Macrına, and cherub In the
jambs of the flankıng wıiındows— were SCCI1 and briefly recorded Dy Takaı1syılı
In NOow they ave completely dısappeared OT dIC educed to unrecogn1-
vA Iragments. Of the central Deesis only the mıddle portion remaıns He
the paıntings above the figures’ cshoulders AI chıpped off and the portion
EeIOW the nee SVC 1S covered ıth 1C ayer of whıte-wash.

Here, 4S ın the other examples discussed In thıs aADCT, the artıst ollows the
canonıcal approac. by placıng the Vırgin the ng sıde of Christ, SinCce che
1s always the first intercessor be nvoked iın the intercessorYy PIayCI of the
lıturey , and by placıng the Prodromos CAhrıst'< eft sıde. Both (g
extend theır aTrTMs In the gestiure of pPTITayCI (93: supplıcatıon toward Chriıst AS In
the DrevIOUS example. However, it 1S St John the Baptıst LO whom the church
of Skı 1S dedicated and who AaCTIS d intercessor Chriıst, not the Vırgın. Thıs
1S conhirmed by the Georglian mrg vlovanı inscrıption the scroll held by
Christ (fig of 1CcC the Hirst [WO lınes Can be partıally read, and a  oug
the lower portion 1S hıdden under whıte-wash, the remalnıng e1g lınes ıIn
between dIC quıte jeg1ble . They read:

k z3m.6,
UWM MO 31 ]Co3(3)

Sobo(g)erm
al(9I309)RUM(9)So +(000M(3)S
0(0)6(5)9(M)MÖ(9)co COV Ö(9)
al(m)6(S)MO 05009 mMOM
mM(9)ö(S)Q a(m)6(9)5(0)L(3)aQ M(MdIEeR)OaB

Ö(90)9mML9): mm b059
d(9m)696(0) 3Z000MB)S M(dMMNo)L(S)R ”
o' Reliever of the SINS, beseech yOUu the DIECUTISOT and relatıve, behold the wıickedness of
the mınd 1C. Wds revealed yYOU, forgıve through intercession

Expedition, pls 61,
Brıightman, C1It. 351 388, 406

1 1 WOUuU ıke thank Proi. Sanidze, University of Tbılısı, who kındly ımproved IM Y readıng
In letter of 19.V1I1.1984
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From thıs incomplete inscription ıt AaPPCAaIs that the intercessor 15 the
Prodromos and. AS In the Deesis of the octagonal column, the supplıcatory
texi the scroll 1S noTt eıng presented the Savlıour d ONC WOU EXDECL:
but has already eached Hım I1he unıquely privilıged posıtıon hat the
Prodromos en]Oys In thıs Deesis 1S noTt only explicable Dy hıs role A PTECUTSOT
an close relatıve of Chriıst, eing d member of Hıs amiıly , but a1sO by the
fact hat St John 1S the ıtulary saınt whom OUT church 1S dedicated ese
virtues. emphatıcally stated In OUT Inscrıption, must ave played iImportant
role In the PDTOCCSS of intercess10n.

At the SdMlec time OUT supplıcatory tex{i ofiers the Mirst instance of the
Georglan equıvalent (390M96S vedreba or the TeCe term ÖENOLG
Un{fortunately 1t 0€es nOoTL reveal the redemptive object, but indıcates that ıt
COU ave been of hıstorıical nature d 1S suggested by the sıxth and seventh
ıne of OUT inscrıption referring the wıckedness of the human mınd, and by
the [WO seemıingly elated composıtıions Nankıng the Deesis eıther sıde:
the rg (east) sıde you  ul, nımbed Christ 1S led AWAdVY Dy L[WO Roman
soldiers fg be crucıfed, ONC holdıng lance, the second SPONSC
long pole Chrıst o€es nol ear the e the passerby Sımeon of Cyrene
Was compelled for Hım (Mt Zl DZ: 5E LK nd
there ollowe hım COMDANYy of people, and of iC qalso
bevaıled and amented hım  79 (Lk They AT shown emergıng Viviıdly
agıtated and gesticulatıng from walled CIty gate of Jerusalem partly ısıble In
the background. On the eft (west) sıde of the Deesıis ATC aqalso [WO STOUDS of
Inen dıvided ere Dy vertical strıp (g eiT ea ATIC turned toward the
eft and they SCCI1 be lıstening attentively and starıng al somethıng hat Can

longer be determined. SINCE thıs paıntıng has een completely chıpped off.
ese INenN ATC dıstinguished from each other NOTL only Dy theır haır styles,
beards and facıal features, but Dy dıferent colorıng AdSs well. indıcatıng the
artısts attempt indıvıdualıze them

OVe the ng 1S cshown centrally planned ciırcular STITUCLUFreEe
surmounted uUDON trıple stepped platform. Its exteri1o0r Wa AF artıculated
Dy CONtUNUOUS LOWS of evenly spaced 1n arcades resting ngaged columns
equ1ppe: ıth capıtals and bases. Each 1ın arcade 1S pıerced by siıngle,
rTOUN:!  eade WINdOW. OVeEe the 1n arcades AaDPDCAaISs be the roof. In the
mıddle of the uıldıng 1S OÖOPCH DOTIC surmounted ıth double pıtched
roof covered wıth pantıles The porches’ pedıimen and arch A supported DYy
ngaged columns ıth the SdadJINne form AS those the exteri10r all of the
ul  ıng second sımılar pOrC 1S the eft sıde. On the opposıte, ng sıde.
16 COXN be iıdentihed ASs the south facade of the cathedral, 1S all Lar ToW

k Kantorowicz, “*Ivorıes and I1tanıes.: Warbh (1942) T7A Der Nersessı1an, 2 WO
Images of the Vırgin In the umbarton aks Collection”, Dumbarton aks Papers (1960)
731.: alter, O, Cil:: AD
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SITUGIUTEe resemblıng ower that consıst of [WO stori1es > The lower
ONC has [WO WIndows ONC placed above the other, the evel has four
SsSma WwWIndows and low 001(?)

AIl of these features aTrc charaecterıistıc of the cathedral äl Bana, and indeed
the uıldıng 1S iıdentihed d such DYy incomplete, sıngle ıne Georglan
inscrıption placed EeI0O0W ıt Thıs magnıfıcent cathedral!* ul Dy Kıng
Adarnase between RX ] and 23 1S tetraconch enclosed DYy CIICUular., [WO-
storıed ambulatory. Was noOoTLt only bıshop's seat but cultural center and
the W ase of the rulers of 1ao, INa y of whom oun theır resting place
there Unfortunately, the portion of the cathedral and 1ts dome, whose
reconstruction 1S controversıal ubject aM O arı hıstorl1ans, has een
completely chıpped off ıIn OUT paıntıng. Nevertheless, the lower of the
cathedral, namely the platform, the west and north porches, 16 dısplay
close aflınıty the pOorc of the south Oskı and, above all, the
south pOorc ıth ıts elaborate towerıing SEr UCLUTG:; Call be reconstructed.

The incomplete inscr1ption ECIO0OW the cathedrall states
ÖSbabLa 93M9LO(0)2 cosO182  Djobadze  structure resembling a tower that seems to consist of two stories!*. The lower  one has two windows one placed above the other, the upper level has four  small windows and a low roof(?).  All of these features are characteristic of the cathedral at Bana, and indeed  the building is identified as such by an incomplete, single line Georgian  inscription placed below it. This magnificent cathedral!* built by King  Adarnase between 881 and 923 is a tetraconch enclosed by a circular, two-  storied ambulatory. It was not only a bishop’s seat but a cultural center and  the power base of the rulers of Tao, many of whom found their resting place  there. Unfortunately, the upper portion of the cathedral and its dome, whose  reconstruction is a controversial subject among art historians, has been  completely chipped off in our painting. Nevertheless, the lower parts of the  cathedral, namely the platform, the west and north porches, which display a  close affinity to the porch of the south crossarm on Oski and, above all, to the  south porch with its elaborate towering structure, can be reconstructed.  The incomplete inscription below the cathedrall states:  386sLo ga gLo(d)a ©8 ... “in Bana the Church was ...”.  The remainder of this sentence is unfortunately hidden under the white-wash.  Perhaps it could help us considerably to understand why this cathedral was  depicted here, although even the legible part of the inscription suggests that it  was the scene of some significant event, but specifically what and whether the  two compositions flanking the Deesis are part of it can only be answered when  the white-wash has been removed. This would restore not only the inscriptions  (including the one on the supplicatory scroll) but perhaps also the image of the  Georgian nobleman Patrikios Djodjik, who in 1036 completely decorated the  interior of the Oski church with wall paintings!>.  Until then we may tentatively suggest that the selection of themes for the  south crossarm in O$ki could reflect the traumatic events of 1021 to 1022 and  1027 to 1028, when Georgian forces suffered a decisive defeat by Byzantine  armies in Tao, and the ensuing disastrous outcome which was legalized in the  course of diplomatic discussions between the Byzantines and Georgians con-  ducted in 1034 in the very church of Bana. One could also propose that the  solemn procession depicted below the cathedral refers to more agreeable  events in the History of Georgia: the coronation of Bagrat IV in 1027 or his  wedding to the niece of the Byzantine emperor Basil ITI in 1032 since both had  taken place here as well.  13 The preserved walls indicate that the interior of this porch could have been ca. 4.00 m?. The  door, which I measured in 1968, leading into the cathedral is 2.00 m. wide.  14 According to Koch who visited the cathedral when it was still in good condition and who  stated that it ‘“ohne Zweifel das Schönste und Erhabenste ist, was ich in der Art im ganzen  Orient (mit Ausnahme von Konstantinopel) gesehen habe”. Reise im pontischen Gebirge und  türkischen Armenien II, Weimar 1846, 243.  15 This is known from the Georgian mrgvlovani inscription preservedin the apse of the church in  Oski (E. Takaiövili, op. cit., 56-58)...  1ın Bana the Church Was182  Djobadze  structure resembling a tower that seems to consist of two stories!*. The lower  one has two windows one placed above the other, the upper level has four  small windows and a low roof(?).  All of these features are characteristic of the cathedral at Bana, and indeed  the building is identified as such by an incomplete, single line Georgian  inscription placed below it. This magnificent cathedral!* built by King  Adarnase between 881 and 923 is a tetraconch enclosed by a circular, two-  storied ambulatory. It was not only a bishop’s seat but a cultural center and  the power base of the rulers of Tao, many of whom found their resting place  there. Unfortunately, the upper portion of the cathedral and its dome, whose  reconstruction is a controversial subject among art historians, has been  completely chipped off in our painting. Nevertheless, the lower parts of the  cathedral, namely the platform, the west and north porches, which display a  close affinity to the porch of the south crossarm on Oski and, above all, to the  south porch with its elaborate towering structure, can be reconstructed.  The incomplete inscription below the cathedrall states:  386sLo ga gLo(d)a ©8 ... “in Bana the Church was ...”.  The remainder of this sentence is unfortunately hidden under the white-wash.  Perhaps it could help us considerably to understand why this cathedral was  depicted here, although even the legible part of the inscription suggests that it  was the scene of some significant event, but specifically what and whether the  two compositions flanking the Deesis are part of it can only be answered when  the white-wash has been removed. This would restore not only the inscriptions  (including the one on the supplicatory scroll) but perhaps also the image of the  Georgian nobleman Patrikios Djodjik, who in 1036 completely decorated the  interior of the Oski church with wall paintings!>.  Until then we may tentatively suggest that the selection of themes for the  south crossarm in O$ki could reflect the traumatic events of 1021 to 1022 and  1027 to 1028, when Georgian forces suffered a decisive defeat by Byzantine  armies in Tao, and the ensuing disastrous outcome which was legalized in the  course of diplomatic discussions between the Byzantines and Georgians con-  ducted in 1034 in the very church of Bana. One could also propose that the  solemn procession depicted below the cathedral refers to more agreeable  events in the History of Georgia: the coronation of Bagrat IV in 1027 or his  wedding to the niece of the Byzantine emperor Basil ITI in 1032 since both had  taken place here as well.  13 The preserved walls indicate that the interior of this porch could have been ca. 4.00 m?. The  door, which I measured in 1968, leading into the cathedral is 2.00 m. wide.  14 According to Koch who visited the cathedral when it was still in good condition and who  stated that it ‘“ohne Zweifel das Schönste und Erhabenste ist, was ich in der Art im ganzen  Orient (mit Ausnahme von Konstantinopel) gesehen habe”. Reise im pontischen Gebirge und  türkischen Armenien II, Weimar 1846, 243.  15 This is known from the Georgian mrgvlovani inscription preservedin the apse of the church in  Oski (E. Takaiövili, op. cit., 56-58).The remaınder of thıs 1S unfortunately hıdden under the whıte-wash.

Perhaps it could help us consıderabily {O understand why thıs cathedral Was

epicte: here, a  oug CVCNMN the eg1ble part of the inscrıption hat 1t
Was the of SOTINC sıgnıfıcant CV! but specıfically hat and whether the
[WO Composıtions Mankıng the Deesıis ATIC part Öl ıt Call only be answered when
the whıte-wash has een removed. 18 WOU estore NOTL only the inscrıptions
(includıng the ON the supplıcatory croll) but perhaps also the image of the
Georglan nobleman Patrıkıos DJjodjik, who ıIn 036 completely decorated the
inter10r of the skı church ıth all paıntıngs *>.
nu hen INd Y tentatıvely uggest that the selection of themes for the

south ın sSk1 COU. reflect the traumatıc events of 021 022 and
027 1028, when Georglan forces uflered decısıve defeat Dy Byzantıne
armıles In Tao, and the ensumg disastrous Oufcome IC Wäas legalızed in the
COUTSC of diıplomatıc discussions between the Byzantınes and Georglans COIN-

ducted In 034 In the VEIY church of ana One COU alsoO PTFrODOSC that the
solemn procession epicte eIO0W the cathedral refers LO INOTEC agreeable
events ın the Hıstory of Georgla the coronatıon of Bagrat In 027 0)8 hıs
weddıng the nlıece of the Byzantıne CINDCI OI ası 11 In 032 SINCE both had
taken place ere ASs ell
13 The preserved walls ndıcate that the iınter10r7 of thıs pOrC. COU. ave een 400 m“ The

door, which measured In 1968, leadıng into the cathedral 1S 2.00 wıde.
According och who visıted the cathedral when ıt Was st1l] in g00d condıtion and who
stated that ıt ‘“ohne 7weıfel das CANhONSstTe und Erhabenste ist, Was ich In der Art 1mM Sanzcnh
Orıient (mıt Ausnahme VO  Pnd Konstantınopel gesehen abe  . Reise IM pontischen Gebirge un
türkischen Armenien EB Weımar 1846, 247

15 hıs 15 known from the eorgjan mrg vlovani inscr1ption preserved in the ADSC of the church iın
Skı Takaısyvılı, C:, 56-58


